#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- **04** Strategy
- 05 Performance

06 Sustainabilit	У
------------------	---

# Approach

ESG Governance Structure

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

# Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

# Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

#### Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Report

O7 Financial Report

08 ESG Report

# BW LPG Corporate Governance Report 2023

# Corporate Governance Comply or Explain Overview

With reference to the Norwegian Code of Corporate Governance

Section of the Code		Deviations
01:	Implementation and reporting on corporate governance	None
02:	Business	The Company's objectives are wider and more extensive.
03:	Equity and dividends	The Company's issuance and purchase of its own shares are neither limited to a specific purpose nor to a specified period.
04:	Equal treatment of shareholders	None
05:	Shares and Negotiability	The Company may decline to register the transfer of any share if the transfer results in the Company being deemed a "Controlled Foreign Company" in Norway.
06:	General meetings	The Chairman of the Board also acts as the Chair of the General Meetings.
07:	Nomination committee	None
08:	Board of Directors: composition and independence	None
09:	The work of the Board of Directors	One of the two members of the Remuneration Committee is not independent of the Company's largest shareholder.
10:	Risk management and internal control	None
11:	Remuneration of the Board of Directors	None
12:	Remuneration of the Executive Personnel	Performance-related remuneration to Executive Personnel is not subject to an absolute limit.
13:	Information and communications	None
14:	Take-overs	None
15:	Auditor	None

Table 1: Overview of deviations from the Code

# Section 01 Implementing and reporting on corporate governance

BW LPG Limited ("BW LPG" or the "Company") is a Bermuda limited liability company listed on the Oslo Børs (the Oslo Stock Exchange).

BW LPG is primarily governed by the Bermuda Companies Act, its Memorandum of Association and its Bye-laws. In addition, the Company is required to comply with certain aspects of the Norwegian Securities Trading Act, the Norwegian Accounting Act and the continuing obligations for companies listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange.

This Report provides an overall overview of the

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- O4 Strategy
- 05 Performance

#### 06 Sustainability

#### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact
Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

# Corporate Governance Report

# Remuneration Report

O7 Financial Report

08 ESG Report

Company's Corporate Governance practices with specific reference to the Norwegian Code of Practice for Corporate Governance (the "Code") dated 14 October 2021 issued by the Norwegian Corporate Governance Board. Each individual point of the Code is reviewed and if the Company deviates from the Code, explanations are provided. The Code is available at <a href="https://www.nues.no">https://www.nues.no</a>.

The Board of Directors (the "Board") believes that the interests of the Company and its shareholders are best served by the adoption of business policies and practices which are legal, compliant, ethical, and open in relation to all dealings with customers, potential customers and other third parties. These policies are designed to be fair and in accordance with leading market practices on

stakeholder relationships and are also sensitive to reasonable expectations of public interest.

The Company's Corporate Governance policy takes into account the Code and as such, includes self-regulatory corporate governance practices. The Company has developed its internal policies and practices, where appropriate, to meet the requirements and recommendations of the Code.

The Corporate Governance of the Company is subject to review by the Board at least annually, and the Company's governance documents are reviewed annually to ensure continued relevance and accuracy.

The Company does not deviate from Section 1 of the Code.

# Section 02 The Business

The Company's Memorandum of Association describes the nature of the Company's business and the objectives of the Company. In accordance with common practice for Bermuda companies, the description of the Company's objectives is wider and more extensive than recommended in the Code. This represents a deviation from Section 2 of the Code.

The Board leads the Company's strategic planning, makes decisions and defines clear objectives, strategies and risk profiles that form the basis for the Company's Executive Personnel to prepare and carry out investments

and structural measures to create value for the shareholders in a sustainable way. During this work, the Board takes into account economic, social and environmental conditions to ensure value creation for a sustainable business. The Company's strategies, objectives, business activities and risk profiles are evaluated at least annually and are described in the Annual Report. The Company has implemented corporate values, ethical guidelines and guidelines for corporate social responsibility. These values and guidelines are described in the Company's Code of Ethics, Business Conduct and internal policies.

# Section 03 Equity and Dividends

The Board regularly evaluates the Company's capital requirements to ensure that the Company has a capital structure which is appropriate for its objectives, strategy and risk profile.

The Board has decided on a dividend policy for

the Company to provide a degree of predictability and transparency on the determination of dividend payouts to shareholders. Details on the dividend policy can be found on the Company's website.

In addition to cash dividends, the Company may

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- **04** Strategy
- 05 Performance

#### 06 Sustainability

#### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

#### Corporate Governance Report

# Remuneration Report

- **O7** Financial Report
- 08 ESG Report

buy back shares as part of its total distribution of capital to shareholders. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board of Directors may declare dividends and distributions without the approval of the shareholders in general meetings. Dividend payouts which are approved at the Board Meetings of the Company are made in accordance with the dividend policy.

Pursuant to Bermuda law and in accordance with common practice for Bermuda

incorporated companies, the Board has authority to issue any authorised unissued shares in the Company on such terms and conditions as it may decide and may exercise all powers of the Company to purchase the Company's own shares. The powers of the Board to issue and purchase shares are neither limited to specific purposes nor to a specified period as recommended in the Code. This represents a deviation from Section 3 of the Code.

# Section 04 Equal Treatment of Shareholders

The Company has one class of shares. Each share in the Company carries one vote, and all shares carry equal rights, including the right to participate in general meetings. All shareholders will be treated on an equal basis, unless there is just cause for treating them differently.

Pursuant to Bermuda law and common practice for Bermuda incorporated companies, the shareholders of the Company do not have preemption rights in share issues unless otherwise resolved by the Company. Any decision to issue shares without pre-emption rights for existing shareholders will be justified in the common interest of the company and the shareholders. In the event that the Company carries out a share issue without pre-emption rights for

existing shareholders, then the justification will be publicly disclosed in a stock exchange announcement issued in connection with the share issue.

Any transactions the Company carries out in its own shares will be carried out either through the Oslo Stock Exchange or with reference to prevailing stock exchange prices if carried out in another way. If there is limited liquidity in the Company's shares, the Company will consider other ways to ensure equal treatment of shareholders.

The Company does not deviate from Section 4 of the Code.

## Section 05 Shares and Negotiability

In general, the shares in the Company are freely transferable.

However, the Board may decline to register the transfer of any share, where such transfer would, in the opinion of the Board, likely result in 50% or more of the aggregate issued and outstanding share capital of the Company being held or owned directly or indirectly by individuals or legal persons resident for tax purposes in

Norway, or alternatively, such shares being effectively connected to a Norwegian business activity, or the Company otherwise being deemed a "Controlled Foreign Company" as such term is defined pursuant to Norwegian tax legislation. The purpose of this provision is to avoid the Company being deemed a Controlled Foreign Company pursuant to Norwegian tax rules. This represents a deviation from Section 5 of the Code.

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- O4 Strategy
- 05 Performance

#### 06 Sustainability

#### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

#### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

#### Corporate Governance Report

# Remuneration Report

- **O7** Financial Report
- **08** ESG Report

# Section 06 General Meetings

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will normally take place on or before 31 May each year. The Company encourages all shareholders to participate in and to vote at General Meetings. In order to facilitate shareholder participation, the Board ensures that:

- the resolutions and supporting documentation, if any, will be sufficiently detailed, comprehensive and specific to allow shareholders to understand and form a view on matters that are to be considered at the General Meeting;
- the registration deadline, if any, for shareholders to participate at the General Meeting will be set as closely to the date of the General Meeting as practically possible and permissible under the provision in the Bye-laws;
- the shareholders will have the opportunity to vote on each individual matter, including on each candidate nominated for election to the Company's Board and Committees (if applicable); and
- the members of the Board, the chairman of the nomination committee and the auditor (where attendance is regarded as essential) will have the opportunity to participate at the General Meeting.

Shareholders who cannot be present at the General Meeting will be given the opportunity

to vote by proxy or to participate by using electronic means. The Company will in this respect:

- provide information on the procedure for attending by proxy in the notice;
- nominate a person who will be available to vote on behalf of shareholders as their proxy; and
- prepare a proxy form which will, insofar as this is possible, be formulated in such a manner that the shareholder can vote on each item that is to be addressed and vote for each of the candidates that are nominated for election.

Pursuant to common practice for Bermuda incorporated companies, the Company's Byelaws stipulate that the Chairman of the Board will chair the General Meeting unless otherwise agreed by a majority of those shares represented at the meeting. In this respect, the Company deviates from Section 6 of the Code. However, there will be routines to ensure that an independent person is available to chair the General Meeting or a particular agenda with regards to any matters related to the Chairman.

The minutes of the Annual General Meeting will be published on the Company's website no later than 15 days after the date of the meeting, and a printed version can be made available upon request.

### Section 07 Nomination Committee

The Company has a Nomination Committee appointed by the General Meeting with a Chairman elected by the General Meeting. The Nomination Committee is laid down in the Company's Bye-laws with guidelines approved at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee guidelines are made available on the Company website.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for proposing candidates for election to the Board and the Nomination Committee, and proposing remuneration to be paid to members of these bodies. As part of its work in proposing candidates for election to the Board and the Nomination Committee, the Nomination Committee is available for contact with

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- **04** Strategy
- 05 Performance

#### 06 Sustainability

#### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

#### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

#### Corporate Governance Report

# Remuneration Report

- **O7** Financial Report
- 08 ESG Report

shareholders and maintains contact with the Board and the Company's Executive Personnel. The Nomination Committee will justify its recommendations for each candidate separately and strive to consult with relevant shareholders concerning proposals for appointment of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee have been selected to take into account a broad range of shareholder interests. In accordance with the recommendations of the Code, the Nomination Committee is independent and

does not include any Executive Personnel or any member of the Company's Board of Directors.

An up-to-date composition of the Nomination Committee is available on the Company's website and the Company will provide shareholders with any deadlines for submitting proposals for candidates to the Nomination Committee.

The Company does not deviate from Section 7 of the Code.

# Section 08 Board of Directors: composition and independence

The composition of the Board represents a broad cross–section of the Company's shareholders, which ensures that they can meet the Company's need for expertise, capacity, diversity and independence. The Board consists of six members, who continue to work together as a team to exercise proper supervision on the management of the Company. The majority (five of the six members) are independent of the Company's largest shareholder, the Executive Personnel, and material business connections of the Company. The Board does not include any Executive Personnel. The general meeting elects the chairman of the Board.

Members of the Board will serve for a term of two years, after which they would be re-evaluated before being considered for re-election. The value of continuity will be balanced against the need for renewal and independence. Where a member of the Board has served for a prolonged continuous period, consideration will be given as to whether the individual Board member in question is still considered independent of the Company's Executive Personnel.

The information of the Board, the expertise of the Board members and the members who are considered independent is available on the Company's website and in the Annual Report.

Members of the Board are welcome to own shares in the Company.

The Company does not deviate from Section 8 of the Code.

### Section 09 The Work of the Board of Directors

The Board is ultimately responsible for the management of the Company and for supervising its day-to-day management. The duties and tasks of the Board are detailed in the Company's Bye-laws. The Board has issued instructions for its own work as well as for the Executive Personnel with particular emphasis on clear internal allocation of responsibilities and

duties. This Report and the instructions issued by the Board is based on the view that all decisions of unusual character or major importance rests with the Board, and the authority given to the CEO and other Executive Personnel is not considered to be of unusual character or major importance by the Company.

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- 02 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- O4 Strategy
- 05 Performance

### 06 Sustainability

#### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

Corporate Governance Report

#### Remuneration Report

- **O7** Financial Report
- 08 ESG Report

The Company and Board have put in place guidelines on the handling of agreements with related parties which require the Directors and Officers of the Company and Executive Personnel to notify the Board if they directly or indirectly have a material interest in any transaction carried out by the Company. Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Personnel cannot consider items in which they have a special and prominent interest so that such items can be considered in an unbiased and satisfactory way. In cases of transactions between the Company and a shareholder, a shareholder's parent company, Director, Officer or Executive Personnel of the Company or persons closely related to any such parties, or with another company in the same group, which are not immaterial for either the Company or the close associate involved, the Board will normally obtain a valuation from an independent third party, unless the Board is confident based on other relevant information such as benchmarking studies that it is unnecessary to obtain such valuation to ensure that values are not being transferred from the Company to related parties. Agreements with related parties are given account for in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In order to conduct its work, the Board each year fixes in advance a number of regularly scheduled meetings for the following calendar year, although additional meetings may be called by the Chairman. The directors will normally meet in person but if so allowed by the Chairman, may participate in the meeting by means of electronic communications. Minutes regarding the board meetings are kept by the Company in Bermuda.

The Board has established an Audit Committee as a preparatory and advisory committee for the Board, consisting of two members, both of which are also members of the Board. Both members of the Audit Committee are independent. The work and responsibility of the Audit Committee includes but is not limited to overseeing internal controls, risk management, internal audit and external audit activities; assessing the performance of the external auditors; and management of the Company's Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") material topics.

The Board has also established a Remuneration Committee to ensure thorough and independent preparation of matters relating to compensation paid to the Executive Personnel. The Remuneration Committee consists of two members, both of which are also members of the Board, and one of the two members is not independent of the Company's largest shareholder. This represents a deviation from Section 9 of the Code.

The Board carries out an annual self-evaluation of its performance and expertise. The various Board Committees are also reviewed for their effectiveness in executing their responsibilities. This evaluation aims to appraise the Board's performance over the year and serve as a foundation for improving its functions. The Nomination Committee takes into consideration the results of the annual self-evaluation when reviewing the composition of the Board.

Details on the various board committees and their respective guidelines adopted at the Company's Annual General Meeting are available on the Company's website.

# Section 10 Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board ensures that the Company has sound internal control procedures and systems to manage its exposure to risks related to the conduct of the Company's business, to support the quality of its financial and non-financial

reporting, and to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. Such procedures and systems will contribute to securing shareholders' investment and the Company's assets and creating value for stakeholders.

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- 04 Strategy
- 05 Performance

## 06 Sustainability

### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Report

O7 Financial Report

08 ESG Report

Management and internal control are based on Company-wide policies and internal guidelines in addition to implementation and follow-up of a risk assessment process. The Company's risk management system is central to the Company's internal controls and ensures that the guidelines for integrating considerations related to stakeholders into its creation of value are known and adhered to.

The Board carries out an annual review of the Company's most important areas of exposure to risk and its internal control arrangements. A description of the annual risk review and the risks identified are disclosed in the Annual Report.

An annual supervisory plan for internal audit work is approved by the Audit Committee. This audit plan includes an audit for internal controls in processes for functions at both group and subsidiary level. The internal auditor is independent from the Executive Personnel and reports directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee follows up on internal controls and risk management in connection with quarterly reviews of the Group's financial reporting.

Upon effectiveness of the registration statement for the listing of the Company's securities in the U.S., the Company will be subject to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act which requires that the Company include a report from the management on the Company's internal control over financial reporting in its second annual report on Form 20-F. Thus, the Company will be subject to a more extensive and strict compliance and reporting regime than the Company was prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement. In connection with the preparation of the registration statement and compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Company and the Auditor (as defined in Section 15) have identified material weakness in the Company's internal control over financial

reporting relating to not having a sufficient number of personnel with an appropriate level of U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") reporting knowledge, experience and training in internal controls over financial reporting, resulting in inadequate resources to operate the period-end financial reporting controls, even though the Company is of the view that it has had sufficient internal control over financial reporting to satisfy applicable requirements under its current reporting regime and has satisfied its reporting obligations as a Oslo Stock Exchange listed company. The work performed by the Company and the incremental audit work performed to prepare for the US securities filing did not identify any material errors in the historical financial statements of the Company as a result of the material weakness referred to above. Thus, the Company and the Auditor have concluded that no restatement of historical financial information will be required and that any adjustments will be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements for the financial year 2023.

The Company is committed to improving its financial organisation and to having effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the requirements under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the Company is in the process of implementing a number of measures to address the material weakness identified, including, among other things, (i) hiring additional accounting and reporting personnel with adequate SEC knowledge, skills, experience and training; and (ii) formalising existing and implementing additional internal control procedures and policies to improve the financial reporting process in compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

The Company does not deviate from Section 10 of the Code.

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- **04** Strategy
- 05 Performance

#### 06 Sustainability

#### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

#### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

#### Corporate Governance Report

#### Remuneration Report

- O7 Financial Report
- 08 ESG Report

#### Section 11 Remuneration of Board of Directors

The Annual General Meeting of the Company decides the remuneration of the Board. The remuneration of the directors reflects its competence, level of activity, responsibility, use of resources and the complexity of the business activities.

The remuneration of the directors is not linked to the Company's performance and the directors do not receive profit-related remuneration, share options or retirement benefits from the Company.

Directors and/or companies with whom

Directors are associated shall not normally undertake special tasks for the Company in addition to the directorship. However, if they do so, the entire Board shall be informed, and the fee will be approved by the Board.

Details of normal directors' fees are disclosed in the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting. Any additional remuneration and benefits in are disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

The Company does not deviate from Section 11 of the Code.

### Section 12 Remuneration of Executive Personnel

The Board has established guidelines that set out the main principles applied in determining the salary and other remuneration of the Executive Personnel. The Guidelines for Executive Remuneration are clear and understandable, and contribute to the Company's business strategy, long-term interests and financial sustainability. Any change in these guidelines will be formally communicated at the Annual General Meeting and updated on the website. Since the Guidelines for Executive Remuneration is not a requirement under Bermuda law, the Annual General Meeting has not voted over the guidelines.

The remuneration of the Executive Personnel is reviewed annually and approved by the Board based on recommendations by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee of the

Executive Personnel and gathers information from comparable companies before recommending it to the Board. Such a recommendation aims to ensure convergence of the financial interests of the Executive Personnel and the shareholders and is made easily understandable. Details on remuneration are disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

Performance–related remuneration is awarded in relation to annual performance against predetermined performance targets, which includes sustainability objectives. The aggregate bonus pool available for payment is determined with close reference to the Company's profitability and shareholder value creation. Performance–related remuneration to Executive Personnel is not subject to an absolute limit. This represents a deviation from Section 12 of the Code.

## Section 13 Information and Communications

The Company is committed to providing information in a manner that contributes to establishing and maintaining confidence with important interest groups and stakeholders. The information shall be based upon openness and equal treatment of all shareholders.

A precondition for the share value to reflect the underlying values in the Company is that all relevant information is disclosed to the market. Based on this and subject to applicable laws and regulations, the Company will keep the shareholders informed about profit

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- 04 Strategy
- 05 Performance

#### 06 Sustainability

#### Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

## Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

#### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

#### Corporate Governance Report

### Remuneration Report

- O7 Financial Report
- 08 ESG Report

developments, prospects and other relevant factors for their analysis of the Company's position and value.

The Company publishes an updated financial calendar with dates for important events such as the Annual General Meeting, publishing of interim reports, public presentations and payment of dividends (if applicable) on the Company's website.

Public investor presentations are arranged in connection with the submission of annual and quarterly results for the Company. The

presentations are also available on the Company's website. Furthermore, continuous dialogue is held with, and presentations are given to analysts and investors, ensuring that at all times, existing and prospective investors have symmetrical access to share–price sensitive information.

Shareholders may contact the Company's investor relations contact at investor.relations@bwlpg.com.

The Company does not deviate from Section 13 of the Code.

#### Section 14 Take-overs

In the event of a take-over process, which shall be decided by the General Meeting, the Board will act in accordance with the following principles:

- the Board will ensure that the offer is made to all shareholders, and on the same terms;
- the Board will ensure that the shareholders have sufficient information and time to assess the offer;
- the Board will not undertake any actions intended to give any shareholder or others an unreasonable advantage at the expense of other shareholders or the Company;
- the Board will strive to be completely open about the take-over situation;
- the Board will not attempt to prevent or impede the take-over bid unless this has been decided by the shareholders in a General Meeting in accordance with applicable law;
- the Board will not institute measures which have the intention of protecting the personal interests of its members at the expense of the interests of the shareholders;
- the Board will ensure that the values and interests of all shareholders are safeguarded

and that the Company's activities are not unnecessarily interrupted.

If an offer is made for the Company's shares, the Board will issue a statement evaluating the offer and making a recommendation as to whether shareholders should or should not accept the offer. If the Board finds itself unable to give a recommendation to the shareholders on whether to accept the offer, it will explain the reasons for this. The Board's statement on a bid will make it clear whether the views expressed are unanimous, and if this is not the case, it will explain the reasons why specific members of the Board have excluded themselves from the statement.

The Board will consider whether to arrange a valuation from an independent expert. If any director, or close associates of such director, or anyone who has recently held a position but has ceased to hold such a position as a director, is either the bidder or has a particular personal interest in the bid, the Board will arrange an independent valuation. This will also apply if the bidder is a major shareholder. Any such valuation will either be enclosed with the Board's statement, reproduced or referred to in the statement.

The Company does not deviate from Section 14 of the Code.

#### **Table of Contents**

- 01 Introduction
- O2 Highlights
- 03 We are BW LPG
- **04** Strategy
- 05 Performance

#### 06 Sustainability

## Approach

**ESG Governance Structure** 

Sustainability Standards, Frameworks and Reporting

Risk Management

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Risks 2023

Materiality

#### Environment

Responsible Transition

Environmental Impact Management

Highlights

# Social

Conducive Workplace

Talent Management

Highlights

### Governance

Operational Excellence

Highlights

# Engagements

Shipping Industry
Engagements and
Commitments

Local Community

Stakeholder Engagement

# Corporate Governance Report

# Remuneration Report

- **O7** Financial Report
- **08** ESG Report

#### Section 15 Auditor

The Company's auditor (the "Auditor") is appointed by the Annual General Meeting of the Company and is responsible for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

The Auditor participates in the Audit
Committee's review and discussion of the
annual accounts and quarterly interim accounts.
In these meetings, the Audit Committee is
informed of the annual and quarterly accounts
and issues of special interest. Further, the
Auditor reviews key aspects of the audit, any
material changes in the Company's accounting
principles, comments on any material estimated
accounting figures and reports on all material
matters on which there has been disagreement
between the Auditor and the Executive
Personnel of the Company.

The Board and the Audit Committee will at least once a year review the Company's internal control procedures relating to its financial reporting process, including weaknesses identified by the Auditor and proposals for improvement, together with the Auditor.

The Board holds a meeting with the Auditor at least once a year at which no representative of the Executive Personnel present. The Board also determines the right of the Executive Personnel to use the Auditor for purposes other than auditing.

The Auditor confirms his independence in writing to the Audit Committee annually.

The Company does not deviate from Section 15 of the Code.